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Plaintiff Matt Kardovich (“Plaintiff”), individually and on behalf of others similarly 

situated, alleges for his Class Action Complaint against Defendant Pfizer, Inc. (“Defendant”) upon 

personal knowledge as to himself and his own acts, and as to all other matters upon information 

and belief, based upon, inter alia, the investigation made by his attorneys, as follows: 

NATURE OF THE ACTION  

1. Defendant Pfizer, Inc., through its pervasive and false labeling and marketing of 

Centrum, has created in consumers’ minds the belief that taking multi-vitamins will afford them 

positive health benefits and prevent chronic illness. In fact, the multi-vitamins do not afford 

consumers positive health benefits and do not prevent chronic illness. 

2.  Defendant has created a lucrative business, self-proclaiming that “Centrum is the 

No. 1 selling brand of multivitamins in the world . . . .”1 Each of the Centrum® multivitamins – 

Centrum® Silver® Women 50+, Centrum® Silver® Men 50+, Centrum® Silver® Adults 50+, 

Centrum® Women, Centrum® Men, Centrum® Adults (collectively, the “Products” or 

“Centrum”) – claims to provide various positive health benefits.  The Products are sold in all fifty 

states, Canada, and Europe.   

3. Unfortunately for consumers, Centrum’s claimed positive health benefits are 

wholly contradicted by the credible and reliable science-based evidence. The credible and reliable 

science-based evidence affirmatively proves that supplements are ineffective at preventing disease, 

and their use is not justified. 

                                                 

1 Pfizer, Annual Report (2012), available at 
http://www.pfizer.com/files/investors/financial_reports/annual_reports/2012/leading-
products.html. 
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4. This lawsuit is brought by Plaintiff, as a nationwide class action against Defendant

on behalf of Plaintiff and a class of similarly situated persons who have purchased Centrum.  This 

class action seeks to halt Defendant’s deceptive marketing of Centrum and seeks damages for 

Defendant’s illegal conduct in violation of Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business 

Practices Act, 815 ILCS Section 505/1, et seq., and New York General Business Law § 349.  The 

lawsuit further alleges that Defendant was unjustly enriched by its deceptive marketing at the 

expense of Plaintiff and the Class. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

5. This action is within the original jurisdiction of this Court by virtue of 28 U.S.C.

§ 1332(d)(2).  Plaintiff is a citizen of a different state than Defendant, and the amount in

controversy of this class action exceeds five million dollars ($5,000,000.00), exclusive of interest 

and costs. 

6. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(a)(1) & (2) as

Defendant does business within this District.   

THE PARTIES 

7. Plaintiff is a citizen of Illinois who resides in Chicago, Illinois.  He purchased

Centrum during the Class Period based on the representation that the products would benefit his 

health as identified below.  Had Plaintiff known that the statements regarding the positive health 

benefits and prevention of chronic illness were false and misleading, he would not have purchased 

the products or paid a premium price for the products. If the Products did in fact provide the health 

benefits or prevent chronic illness, as represented on Centrum’s labels, Plaintiff would be 

continuing to purchase the Products. 
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8. Defendant Pfizer, Inc. is a corporation organized under the laws of the state of 

Delaware, with its corporate offices at 235 East 42nd Street, New York, New York.  Defendant is 

the 5th largest consumer healthcare company globally, and 2nd largest in the U.S., Canada and 

China.2 Centrum is considered one of Defendant’s “Consumer Healthcare” products.3 In 2012, 

Defendant made $3.212 billion in revenues from its Consumer Healthcare products.4  

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS 

9. Defendant recognized that healthy Americans worry about getting sick and has 

persuaded them to turn to multivitamins as a means of staying healthy and avoiding chronic illness 

and eventual death.  

10. The consumers targeted for this message typically have adequate nourishment and 

do not have the types of vitamin deficiencies warranting vitamin supplementation.  

11. Defendant uses statements like the following to promote the mindset that taking 

multi-vitamins is a smart thing to do: “[a]s people worldwide become increasingly aware of issues 

surrounding health and wellness, they are taking more proactive roles to maintain their personal 

well-being and treat minor illnesses through self-care solutions.”5  

                                                 

2 Prfizer, Annual Report (2012), available at 
http://www.pfizer.com/files/investors/financial_reports/annual_reports/2012/downloads/pfizer_1
2ar_our_businesses.pdf 

3 Pfizer, Financial Report App. A, 112 (2012), available at 
http://www.pfizer.com/files/annualreport/2011/financial/financial2011.pdf 

4 Id. at 115. 

5 Pfizer, Annual Report, 41 (2009), available at 
http://www.pfizer.com/files/annualreport/2009/annual/review2009.pdf 
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12. To promote this mindset and capitalize on the demand it creates, Defendant labeled 

and marketed Centrum to tap into the lucrative multivitamin supplement market; a market which 

reached $28 billion in annual sales in 2010.6 Defendant has dominated this market, making 

“Centrum [ ] the No. 1 selling brand of multivitamins in the world . . . .”7 

13. Centrum is typically packed and sold in bottles containing between 80 – 220 tablets.  

14. The packaging for Centrum characterize it as a multivitamin/multimineral 

supplement.  

15. The labeling and marketing of Centrum is designed to mislead consumers into 

believing that Centrum provides them with positive health benefits. In its 2009 Annual Report, 

Defendant described a European version of Centrum Silver as “contain[ing] specially adjusted 

levels of key vitamins and minerals to help fill nutritional gaps and deliver multiple health benefits 

such as energy, immunity, healthy appearance eye health, bone health and environmental stress 

protection.”8 

16. Centrum’s packaging contains vignettes indicating the different categories of 

positive health benefits that each product provides. These include: 

                                                 

6Eliseo Gullar, et al., Enough is Enough: Stop Wasting Money on Vitamin and Mineral 
Supplements, 159 Annals of Internal Medicine 850 (2013). 

7 Pfizer, Annual Report (2012), available at 
http://www.pfizer.com/files/investors/financial_reports/annual_reports/2012/leading-
products.html 

8 Pfizer, Annual Report, 41 (2009), available at 
http://www.pfizer.com/files/annualreport/2009/annual/review2009.pdf (emphasis added) 
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a. ”With antioxidants to support the normal function of the 

immune system.”   

b.  “With vitamins C and E to help protect body’s cells from 

free radicals damage caused by environmental stress.”  

c.  “Contains B-vitamins to aid in the metabolism of fats, 

carbohydrates and proteins.”  

d.  “With the complete range of B-vitamins for energy support.”  

e.  “With vitamins C and E to help protect the body 

against the effects of physical stress.”  
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f.  “Includes B-vitamins to help support daily energy needs.”  

17. Defendant’s internet advertising corroborates its intent to market Centrum’s health 

benefits. By way of example, Centrum claims that “Centrum Silver Adults 50+ applies the latest 

nutritional science to bring you an age-adjusted multivitamin with a broad spectrum of nutrients 

that help protect the health of adults 50+.”9 

18. In an effort to convince consumers that its Products are scientifically supported, 

Defendant boasts on its website about Centrum’s exclusive use in the Physicians’ Health Study 

(PHS) II, which “evaluated the long-term health benefits of taking multivitamins for men age 50 

and older.”10  Additionally, Defendant referred to this study as “landmark” in its 2012 Annual 

Report to investors.11 

19. Unfortunately for consumers, the scientific evidence affirmatively contradicts 

Defendant’s promises to provide positive health benefits.  Accordingly, such representations are 

unfair, unjust, false, misleading, and deceptive. 

20. In a recent editorial titled Enough is Enough: Stop Wasting Money on Vitamin and 

Mineral Supplements, published in the Annals of Internal Medicine,, the authors—after reviewing 

                                                 

9 Centrum website, http://www.centrum.com/centrum-silver-adults-50-plus#tablets (last visited 
Dec. 19, 2013). 

10 Centrum website, http://www.centrum.com/physicians-health-study (last visited Dec. 19, 2013). 

11 Pfizer, Annual Report (2012), available at 
http://www.pfizer.com/files/investors/financial_reports/annual_reports/2012/leading-
products.html 
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the credible and reliable science-based evidence on point—stated unequivocally, “. . . we believe 

that the case is closed—supplementing the diet of well-nourished adults with (most) mineral or 

vitamin supplements has no clear benefit and might even be harmful.”12 The authors, five 

physicians, noted that the “landmark” study Defendant relies upon found no benefit in taking 

Centrum, “. . . there were no differences between the multivitamin and placebo groups in overall 

cognitive performance or verbal memory.”13  

21. The findings of the PHS II study, referenced above, were published in an article 

titled “Long-Term Multivitamin Supplementation and Cognitive Function in Men” that also 

appeared in the Annals of Internal Medicine.14 As explained in the article, at the conclusion of a 

12-year study, researchers found that their data “do[es] not provide support [for] use of 

multivitamin supplements in the prevention of cognitive decline.”15 Accordingly, scientific 

evidence specifically refutes the promises on Centrum’s labels.  

22. A third study was published in the Annals of Internal Medicine titled “Vitamin and 

Mineral Supplements in the Primary Prevention of Cardiovascular Disease and Cancer: An 

Updated Systemic Evidence Review for the U.S. Preventive Services Task Force.”16 Researchers 

evaluated the data from 26 individual studies that examined the benefits and harms of vitamin and 

                                                 

12 Gullar at 851. (emphasis added) 

13 Id. at 850. 

14Francine Grodstein, et al., Long-Term Multivitamin Supplementation and Cognitive Function in 
Men, 159 Annals of Internal Medicine 806 (2013). 

15 Id. at 813. 

16 Stephen P. Fortmann, et al., Vitamin and Mineral Supplements in the Primary Prevention of 
Cardiovascular Disease and Cancer: An Updated Systemic Evidence Review for the U.S. 
Preventive Services Task Force, 159 Annals of Internal Medicine 824 (2013). 

Case 1:13-cv-07378-RRM-JMA   Document 1   Filed 12/27/13   Page 8 of 19 PageID #: 8



CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 
- 9 - 

mineral supplements on 352,311 subjects. The studies evaluated the effects of supplementation on 

rates of Cardiovascular Disease and Cancer. The researchers concluded that there was “no 

evidence of an effect of nutritional doses of vitamins and minerals on CVD [cardiovascular 

disease], cancer or mortality in health individuals without known nutritional deficiencies.”17  

23. In a fourth study in the Annals of Internal Medicine titled “Oral High-Dose

Multivitamins and Minerals after Myocardial Infarction”18 researchers found no significant 

reduction in cardiovascular events in patients treated with a regiment of multivitamins after an 

heart attack. In this study 1708 patients who had recently suffered a heart attack were randomly 

assigned to either receive a high dose of multivitamin/mineral supplement or to a placebo group. 

Subjects were followed until the time of their death. Researchers concluded that “a 28-component, 

high-dose oral multivitamin and multimineral regimen used as secondary prevention in patients 

who have had [heart attacks] did not statistically reduce cardiovascular events.”19 This further 

shows that Centrum is incapable of providing the positive health benefits Defendant claims it 

provides. 

24. A Harvard Medical School special health report observed that vitamins and

supplements are incapable of “bolstering immunity.”20  “There isn’t any evidence-based science 

behind the concept of ‘boosting’ immunity beyond what our finely tuned immune system already 

17 Id. at 831-32. 

18Gervasio A. Lamas, et al., Oral High-Dose Multivitamins and Minerals after Myocardial 
Infarction, 159 Annals of Internal Medicine 797 (2013). 

19 Id. at 801. 

20 Starnbach, Michael N. (ed.), The Truth About Your Immune System, Harvard Medical School 
Special Health Report, 2010 (“Harvard Report”), at 29, available at 
http://www.health.harvard.edu/special_health_reports/the-truth-about-your-immune-system. 
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provides.”21 Furthermore, the Harvard Report explained, “it is an unwarranted stretch of logic to 

claim that ingesting more of these vitamins will translate into better immune function.”22  Thus the 

scientific evidence shows that Centrum’s claimed “immunity” health benefit is untrue. 

25. As detailed above, science-based evidence contradicts the promises made on the 

Centrum’s labels.  

26. A reasonable consumer purchases Centrum believing that it will provide the 

benefits as so promised.  Accordingly, a reasonable consumer would be deceived by Centrum’s 

false and misleading claims because the science-based evidence directly contradicts Centrum’s 

promises.    

27. As described in the preceding paragraphs, everything about the labeling of Centrum 

is calculated to create consumer belief that it provides positive health benefits and unequivocally 

demonstrates Defendant’s intent to so persuade the consumer. 

28. Defendant’s false representations about Centrum are material in that they induced 

Plaintiff and the class members to purchase Centrum. Plaintiff and the class members would not 

have purchased Centrum had they known the true facts about the Products. 

29. Plaintiff and other members of the class will continue to suffer injury if Defendant’s 

deceptive conduct is not enjoined.  To prevent future injury to Plaintiff and the class members, 

Defendant must change Centrum’s labels to remove all deceptive and misleading statements, or 

take such other actions as the Court deems just and proper. 

                                                 

21 Id. at 28. 

22 Id.  
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PLAINTIFF’S CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

30. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil 

Procedure 23.  Plaintiff seeks to represent a class (“Class”) consisting of: 

All persons who purchased Centrum during the period of December 27, 
2007, to the date of class certification (the “Class Period”) for their own or 
household use rather than resale or distribution.  Excluded from the Class 
are Defendant, any entity that has a controlling interest in Defendant, and 
Defendant’s current or former directors, officers, counsel, and their 
immediate families. 
 

31. In the alternative, Plaintiff seeks to represent a class (the “Illinois Class”) consisting 

of all Illinois residents who purchased Centrum during the Class Period for their own or household 

use rather than resale or distribution, excluding Defendant, any entity that has a controlling interest 

in Defendant, and Defendant’s current or former directors, officers, counsel and their immediate 

families; and Plaintiff seeks to represent a class (the “New York Class”) consisting of all New 

York residents who purchased Centrum during the Class Period for their own or household use 

rather than resale or distribution, excluding Defendant, any entity that has a controlling interest in 

Defendant, and Defendant’s current or former directors, officers, counsel and their immediate 

families. 

32. For purposes of this Complaint, the phrase “Class Members” refers collectively to 

all members of the Class, the Illinois Class, and the New York Class, including Plaintiff. 

33. This action has been brought and may properly be maintained as a class action 

against Defendant pursuant to the provisions of Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23 because there 

is a well-defined community of interest in the litigation and the proposed Class is easily 

ascertainable. 

34. The requirements of Rule 23 are satisfied because: 
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a. Numerosity: The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all

members is impracticable.  While the exact number of class members is

presently unknown to Plaintiff, Defendant’s volume of sales indicates that

the number of Class members would make joinder impracticable.

b. Commonality: The questions of law and fact that predominate over

questions which may affect individual Class members include the

following:

1) Whether Defendant materially misrepresented the positive health

benefits of Centrum;

2) Whether Defendant’s misrepresentations and omissions were

material to reasonable consumers;

3) Whether Defendant’s marketing, advertising, packaging, labeling,

distributing, and selling of Centrum constitute unfair, unlawful, or

fraudulent practices;

4) Whether marketing, advertising, packaging, labeling, distributing,

and selling Centrum constitutes false advertising;

5) Whether Defendant’s conduct described above injured consumers

and, if so, the extent of the injury; and

6) Whether, and to what extent, injunctive relief should be imposed on

Defendant to prevent such conduct in the future.

c. Typicality: Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the Class because

Plaintiff suffered from the same harm as the Class in that Plaintiff purchased

products during the Class Period, based on a misleading and deceptive label
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that was the same regardless of where the products were purchased, that did 

not deliver what it promised.  Moreover, Defendant made the same false 

and misleading representations and omissions to the Class members on the 

label of the product.  Thus, Plaintiff and other members of the Class 

sustained the same injuries and damages arising out of Defendant’s conduct 

in violation of Illinois and New York law.  Plaintiff does not have any 

interests antagonistic to or in conflict with the Class.   

d. Adequacy: Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the 

interests of the members of the Class.  No conflicts of interest exist between 

Plaintiff and the Class members.  Plaintiff has retained competent counsel 

experienced in class action litigation and intends to prosecute this action 

vigorously.   

e. Superiority: A class action is superior to other available methods for the 

fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy.  Class action treatment 

will permit a large number of similarly situated persons to prosecute their 

common claims in a single forum simultaneously, efficiently, and without 

the unnecessary duplication of effort and expense that numerous 

individual actions would engender.  Since the damages suffered by 

individual Class members are relatively small, the expense and burden of 

individual litigation make it virtually impossible for the Class members to 

seek redress for the wrongful conduct alleged, while an important public 

interest will be served by addressing the matter as a class action.  
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35. The prerequisites to maintaining a class action for injunctive or equitable relief

pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(2) are met as Defendant has acted or refused to act on grounds 

generally applicable to the Class, thereby making appropriate final injunctive or equitable relief 

with respect to the Class as a whole.  

36. Plaintiff knows of no difficulty that will be encountered in the management of this

litigation that would preclude its maintenance as a class action.  

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 
Violations of the Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act, 

815 ILCS Section 505/1, et seq. 

37. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and realleges all allegations set forth in the

preceding paragraphs.  

38. Defendant engaged in unfair and/or deceptive acts and practices, by among other

things, labeling Centrum in a deceptive and misleading manner by stating that the Products are 

capable of providing positive health benefits. 

39. At all times material, Defendant engaged in a scheme of labeling Centrum as

capable of providing positive health benefits when, in fact, Defendant knew that these 

representations were false and misleading.  In engaging in this conduct, Defendant misrepresented 

an important characteristic of Centrum Products – i.e., that they are capable of providing positive 

health benefits.  Defendant intended that Plaintiff and members of the Class rely on its deceptive 

acts and misrepresentations, and Plaintiff and the members of the Class were actually deceived by 

Defendant’s representations that the Products were capable of providing positive health benefits.  

40. If not for Defendant’s deceptive and misleading representations, Plaintiff and

members of the Class would not have purchased Centrum and/or paid a premium for the Products. 
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41. Defendant was able to sell large quantities of Centrum that it could not have sold

absent its deceptive marketing, causing Plaintiff and the Class substantial injuries. 

42. The misrepresentations made by Defendant described above, with intent that

Plaintiff and the other members of the Class rely upon the deceptive acts and misrepresentations, 

constituted unfair and/or deceptive acts and practices occurring in the course of conduct involving 

trade or commerce within the meaning of 815 ILCS §505/1, et seq.  

43. Defendant’s misconduct in the course of trade and/or commerce offends public

policy and is immoral, unethical, oppressive and/or unscrupulous and caused substantial injury to 

consumers.  

44. Plaintiff and members of the Class suffered damages as a result of Defendant’s

deceptive and/or unfair acts.  Accordingly, Plaintiff on behalf of himself and the other Class 

members, seeks monetary damages, punitive damages, attorneys’ fees and costs and such other 

relief as set forth in the Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Violation of the New York General Business Law § 349) 

45. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and realleges all allegations set forth in the

preceding paragraphs. 

46. Defendant engaged in false and misleading marketing concerning Centrum.

47. As fully alleged above, by advertising, marketing, distributing, and/or selling

Centrum to Plaintiff and the other members of the Class, Defendant engaged in and continues to 

engage in deceptive acts and practices. 

48. Plaintiff and the other members of the Class seek to enjoin such unlawful deceptive

acts and practices as described above.  Each of the Class members will be irreparably harmed 

unless the unlawful actions of the Defendant are enjoined in that Defendant will continue to falsely 
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and misleadingly advertise the health benefits of its Products.  Towards that end, Plaintiff and the 

Class request an order granting them injunctive relief, including an order prohibiting Defendant 

from making health benefit claims regarding its Centrum products and requiring Defendant to 

issue corrective advertising stating its products cannot provide the positive health benefits it has 

previously claimed. 

49. Absent injunctive relief, Defendant will continue to manufacture and sell Centrum 

as products that can provide positive health benefits. 

50. In this regard, Defendant has violated, and continues to violate, section 349 of the 

New York General Business Law (GBL), which makes deceptive acts and practices unlawful.  As 

a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s violation of GBL § 349 as described above, Plaintiff 

and the other members of the Class have suffered damages in an amount to be determined at trial. 

51. Therefore, Plaintiff prays for relief as set forth below. 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 
(Unjust Enrichment under New York Common Law) 

 
52. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and realleges all allegations set forth in the 

preceding paragraphs. 

53. As a result of Defendant’s deceptive, fraudulent, and misleading labeling, 

advertising, marketing, and sales of Centrum, Defendant was enriched, at the expense of Plaintiff 

and the other Class members through the payment of the purchase price for Centrum. 

54. Under the circumstances, it would be against equity and good conscience to permit 

Defendant to retain the ill-gotten benefits that it received from Plaintiff and the other Class 

members in light of the fact that the Centrum purchased by Plaintiff and the other Class members 

was not what Defendant purported it to be.  Thus, it would be unjust or inequitable for Defendant 
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to retain the benefit without restitution to Plaintiff and the other Class members for the monies 

paid to Defendant for such products. 

55. Therefore, Plaintiff prays for relief as set forth below. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated, prays for 

judgment as requested above against Defendant and further prays for: 

(a) An order certifying the Class proposed in this Complaint and appointing Plaintiff 

and his counsel to represent the Class and requiring Defendant to bear the cost of class 

notice (or alternatively, certifying the New York and Illinois Classes proposed in this 

Complaint and appointing Plaintiff and his counsel to represent the respective Classes and 

requiring Defendant to bear the cost of class notice); 

(b) Restitution and/or disgorgement of amounts paid by Plaintiff and the other 

members of the Class(es) for the purchase of Centrum, together with interest from the date 

of payment;  

(c) Actual damages;  

(d) An order granting monetary and injunctive relief pursuant to 815 ILCS §505/1; 

(e) An order granting monetary and injunctive relief pursuant to GBL § 349; 

(f) An order granting injunctive relief requiring Defendant to stop making positive 

health benefit claims for its Centrum products and requiring other appropriate disclosures 

and disclaimers on the labeling, distributing, and selling of Centrum; 

(g) Statutory prejudgment interest; 

(h) Reasonable attorneys’ fees and the costs of this action; 

(i) Other legal and equitable relief under the causes of action stated herein; and 
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(j) Such other relief at this Court may deem just and proper. 
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JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury. 

Dated: December 27, 2013 Respectfully submitted, 

/s/ Michael R. Reese 
REESE RICHMAN LLP 
Michael R. Reese 
mreese@reeserichman.com 
Kim E. Richman 
krichman@reeserichman.com 
875 Avenue of the Americas, 18th Floor 
New York, New York 10001 
Telephone:   (212) 643-0500 
Facsimile:    (212) 253-4272 

- and - 

HALUNEN & ASSOCIATES  
Clayton Halunen (to be admitted pro hac vice) 
halunen@halunenlaw.com   
Susan M. Coler (to be admitted pro hac vice) 
coler@halunenlaw.com 
Melissa W. Wolchansky (to be admitted pro hac 
vice) 
wolchansky@halunenlaw.com  
1650 IDS Center 
80 South Eighth Street 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402 
Telephone:  (612) 605-4098 
Facsimile:   (612) 605-4099 

Counsel for Plaintiff and the Proposed Class 
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CERTIFICATION OF ARBITRATION ELIGIBILITY

Local Arbitration Rule 83.10 provides that with certain exceptions, actions seeking money damages only in an amount not in excess of $150,000,
exclusive of interest and costs, are eligible for compulsory arbitration.  The amount of damages is presumed to be below the threshold amount unless a
certification to the contrary is filed.     

I, ______________________, counsel for __________________, do hereby certify that the above captioned civil action is
ineligible for compulsory arbitration for the following reason(s):

monetary damages sought are in excess of $150,000, exclusive of  interest and costs,  

the complaint seeks injunctive relief,

the matter is otherwise ineligible for the following reason

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT - FEDERAL RULES CIVIL PROCEDURE 7.1

Identify any parent corporation and any publicly held corporation that owns 10% or more or its stocks:

RELATED CASE STATEMENT (Section VIII on the Front of this Form)

Please list all cases that are arguably related pursuant to Division of Business Rule 50.3.1 in Section VIII on the front of this form. Rule 50.3.1 (a)
provides that “A civil case is “related” to another civil case for purposes of this guideline when, because of the similarity of facts and legal issues or
because the cases arise from the same transactions or events, a substantial saving of judicial resources is likely to result from assigning both cases to the
same judge and magistrate judge.” Rule 50.3.1 (b) provides that “ A civil case shall not be deemed “related” to another civil case merely because the civil
case: (A) involves identical legal issues, or (B) involves the same parties.” Rule 50.3.1 (c) further provides that “Presumptively, and subject to the power
of a judge to determine otherwise pursuant to paragraph (d), civil cases shall not be deemed to be “related” unless both cases are still pending before the
court.”

NY-E DIVISION OF BUSINESS RULE 50.1(d)(2)

1.) Is the civil action being filed in the Eastern District removed from a New York State Court located in Nassau or Suffolk
County:_________________________

2.) If you answered “no” above:
a) Did the events or omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in Nassau or Suffolk
County?_________________________

b) Did the events of omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in the Eastern
District?_________________________

If your answer to question 2 (b) is “No,” does the defendant (or a majority of the defendants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau or
Suffolk County, or, in an interpleader action, does the claimant (or a majority of the claimants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau
or Suffolk County?______________________

(Note: A corporation shall be considered a resident of the County in which it has the most significant contacts).

BAR ADMISSION

I am currently admitted in the Eastern District of New York and currently a member in good standing of the bar of this court.
Yes No 

Are you currently the subject of any disciplinary action (s) in this or any other state or federal court?
Yes (If yes, please explain) No 

I certify the accuracy of all information provided above.

Signature:____________________________________________
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